# West Virginia 49 USC Section 5311 STATE MANAGEMENT PLAN



## WEST VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION DIVISION OF PUBLIC TRANSIT

Building 5, Room 650 1900 Kanawha Boulevard, East Charleston, WV 25305-0432 Phone: 304-558-0428

FAX: 304-558-0174 TDD: 1-800-742-6991

Revised
January 2019

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

INT	RODUCTION	1
PUR	POSE OF THE STATE MANAGEMENT PLAN	2
A.	PROGRAM GOALS AND OBJECTIVES	3
B.	ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	4
C.	ELIGIBLE SUBRECIPIENTS	6
D.	ELIGIBLE SERVICES AND SERVICE AREAS	7
E.	ELIGIBLE ASSISTANCE CATEGORIES	8
F.	LOCAL SHARE AND LOCAL FUNDING REQUIREMENTS	9
G.	PROJECT SELECTION CRITERIA AND METHOD OF DISTRIBUTING FUNDS	-
H.	INTERCITY BUS TRANSPORTATION	12
I.	STATE RURAL TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM	13
J.	ANNUAL PROGRAM OF PROJECTS DEVELOPMENT AND APPROPROCESS	
K.	FUNDS TRANSFERS	17
L.	COORDINATION	18
M.	PRIVATE SECTOR PARTICIPATION	19
N.	STATE ADMINISTRATION AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE	20
O.	STATE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT	21
P.	MAINTENANCE	27
Q.	CIVIL RIGHTS	28
R.	SECTION 504 AND ADA REPORTING	29
S.	NTD REPORTING	30
T.	CHARTER RULE	31
U.	OTHER PROVISIONS	322

#### INTRODUCTION

The Federal Transit Act, as amended, includes a formula grant program for rural areas known as Section 5311. The Section 5311 program provides financial assistance for capital, administrative, and operating expenses to rural areas for local public transportation services.

FTA Section 5311 Program Guidance Circular (FTA Circular 9040.1G) was issued by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) on November 24, 2014. This circular incorporates the current statutory and programmatic requirements and changes as outlined in MAP-21.

The Governor has designated the West Virginia Department of Transportation, Division of Public Transit as the agency responsible for administering the Section 5311 program in West Virginia.

#### PURPOSE OF THE STATE MANAGEMENT PLAN

The Section 5311 State Management Plan is intended to facilitate both state management and FTA oversight by documenting the state's policies for administering the Section 5311 program in a single reference. Its primary purposes are to serve as the basis for FTA's review of the state's program, and to provide public information on the state's administration of the Section 5311 program.

#### A. PROGRAM GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The goal of the State of West Virginia's Section 5311 Program is to maintain and provide for the continuation of the State's existing rural transportation systems through the provision of operating and technical assistance and the purchase of capital equipment. The Division of Public Transit participates in the West Virginia Department of Transportation's Public Involvement Process. All the Division's projects are listed in the STIP and put out for public comment.

The objectives of the State's Section 5311 Program are to:

- Provide financial and technical assistance to rural communities for the planning, establishment, expansion and operation of efficient and effective public transportation systems;
- ◆ Perform financial planning and technical analysis to assist in the development and maintenance of public transportation services;
- ♦ Assist rural transit systems in the development and implementation of effective management and marketing strategies; and
- Provide the maximum amount of transportation services in rural areas of the State given the funding limitations.

#### B. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Division of Public Transit was created under Chapter 17, Article 16C of the West Virginia State Code. This section designates the Division as the state agency responsible for administering all federal and state programs relating to public transit. The Division is under the supervision of the Secretary of Transportation.

Under §17-16C-3, the Division has the power to:

- (a) Assist in the development of improved public transportation facilities, services, equipment, techniques and methods, with the cooperation of transportation carriers, both public and private;
- (b) Enhance the mobility of all residents of the state, particularly those who by age, income or physical limitation experience serious transportation disadvantages;
- (c) Manage publicly funded transportation resources in a cost-effective manner and endeavor to achieve an increased ridership with available resources;
- (d) Establish a system to adequately coordinate and distribute publicly funded transportation services within the state, including, but not limited to, transportation services for senior citizens, for participants in head start programs, for citizens with disabilities and for private nonprofit organizations and to establish a pilot project or projects as an initial part of implementing a system of coordination and distribution;
- (e) Maintain a cooperative working relationship with public and private transportation providers, private nonprofit organizations, local planning and development councils, other state agencies and the federal government;
- (f) Coordinate and assist various public and private transportation entities in strengthening their development and operation of public transportation facilities and services;
- (g) Coordinate with other states and the federal government the planning, construction, operation and maintenance of public transportation facilities in the state having an interstate impact;
- (h) Acquire, plan, hold, construct, improve, maintain and operate, own or lease, either in the capacity of lessor or lessee, all facilities necessary or incidental thereto for the operation of public transportation systems in the state;
- (i) Apply for and receive from the federal government or from any other person, corporation, association or other entity, and grants in aid or gifts to be used for public transportation related purposes;
- (j) Provide financial assistance to local transportation agencies to the extent authorized by the Legislature and federal grants *provided* that no county or local government may

reduce the level of funding for transportation services in place upon the effective date of this section and be eligible to receive financial assistance pursuant to this section;

- (k) Enter into contracts with other agencies of the state, other public bodies, private firms or individuals to provide technical services or public transportation related services;
- (l) Exercise or perform any power, duty, responsibility or function in carrying out public transportation related activities which are essential to the completion of the projects;
- (m) Insure local matching funds with state and local money, or both, for federal assistance projects; and
- (n) Implement rules necessary to accomplish its assigned duties.

The Division is responsible for ensuring that the Section 5311 program of projects is included in the statewide transportation improvement program (STIP).

#### C. ELIGIBLE SUBRECIPIENTS

Eligible subrecipients may include state agencies, local public bodies and agencies thereof, private-nonprofit organizations, Indian Tribes and groups, and operators of public transportation services. Private for-profit operators of transit services may participate in the program through contracts with eligible recipients.

Taxi operators, which by West Virginia Public Service Commission interpretation are considered to be "exclusive ride," are therefore not eligible for Section 5311 funding.

Because of limited funding, the state only permits one Section 5311 grantee per county. Additionally, the state does not provide Section 5311 funding to a Section 5307 grantee, even if it provides service in a rural area.

Information about the program is included in the early planning notification and in the public notice that is published on the Division's website at the time the application is prepared.

#### D. ELIGIBLE SERVICES AND SERVICE AREAS

Section 5311 funds are available for expenditure for public transportation projects and intercity bus transportation projects in rural areas. Public transportation is defined as mass transportation by bus, rail, or other conveyance, either publicly or privately owned, which provides to the public general or special service on a regular and continuing basis. Charter or sightseeing or exclusive school bus transportation is not included in this definition.

Section 5311-funded services may be designed to maximize usage by members of the general public who are transportation disadvantaged persons, including elderly persons and persons with disabilities. Coordinated human service transportation which primarily serves elderly persons and persons with disabilities, but which is not restricted from carrying other members of the public, is considered available to the general public if it is marketed as public transit service.

Section 5311 projects may include the transportation of rural area residents to and from urban areas.

The Division does not impose any limitations beyond the federal rules.

#### E. ELIGIBLE ASSISTANCE CATEGORIES

The Division funds operating assistance at a 50/50 matching ratio and makes no distinction between operating and administrative expenses. If insufficient federal funds exist, agencies may be funded at a level below 50 percent.

The Division reserves the right to fund administrative expenses at an 80/20 matching ratio if it would serve the best interests of the state and/or program. These expenses would be consistent with FTA C 9040.1G, "Project Administrative Expenses."

Preventive maintenance on vehicles and facilities is eligible as a capital project at an 80/20 matching ratio. Only those subrecipients with a maintenance garage are eligible. In addition, if a subrecipient uses excess levy funds as its source of local match, they are not eligible.

Capital assistance is provided at the 80/20 funding level.

#### F. LOCAL SHARE AND LOCAL FUNDING REQUIREMENTS

Recipients of Section 5311 funds are eligible to receive assistance from State general revenue funds so long as they don't have a dedicated source of local funds such as an excess levy. It takes a combination of state and local funds to meet the required local share. Other sources for local funds include county commissions, coal severance taxes, city governments, unrestricted federal funds and in-kind match.

Human service agency contract income may be used as local match provided the applicant demonstrates that all direct operating expenses for its human service contract service are recovered without the use of Section 5311 funds. At least 25 percent of Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) must be credited to the fare box.

### G. PROJECT SELECTION CRITERIA AND METHOD OF DISTRIBUTING FUNDS

The procedures for distributing FTA Section 5311 funds are as follows:

<u>Priority One</u> - The first funding priority is to continue operating assistance to current Section 5311 recipients where there exists a continuing demand for public transportation service and a need for federal subsidy. Emphasis is placed on funding multiple county or regional transportation systems.

<u>Priority Two</u> – The second priority for funding is to support capital projects for existing systems. If and when capital funding is made available, eligible requests will be prioritized on the following basis:

- **Replacement** of old, worn-out or unsafe revenue vehicles;
- Purchase of vehicles for the **expansion** of existing services or purchase of additional vehicles to meet demonstrated capacity problems on current routes;
- Purchase of miscellaneous capital equipment (e.g. radios, shop equipment, etc.); and,
- Construction and/or renovation of facilities.

<u>Priority Three</u> – The third priority is the funding of operating and capital expenses for new rural transportation systems. When establishing new service, the Division may give priority to those areas which are *Designated Distressed Counties* by the Appalachian Regional Commission. Other areas may also be considered.

Before the West Virginia Division of Public Transit will approve any new rural transit project, the following must be determined:

- Goals and Objectives. An agency should determine why and to whom it wants to provide transportation. As the mission of the transportation program is clarified, there are specific issues that will shape a transportation system. These include determining the geographic area to be served, the area's greatest transportation needs, and current transportation resources.
- **Needs Assessment**. Once the goals, objectives and service area are defined, a provider must determine what transportation needs are not being met by conducting a needs assessment within the proposed service area. This needs assessment will aid a system in determining:
  - transportation needs for human services clients as well as the general public;
  - frequency and times of transportation needs;
  - revenue sources to provide an adequate level of service to meet these needs;
  - existing transportation services, both public and private as well as existing vehicles in the service area, including their type, age, condition, seating capacity and whether for sale, lease or shared use;
  - new vehicle and other capital needs;

- local government support of rural transit; and,
- multi-year financial plan.

The applicant must demonstrate that it has the requisite legal, financial and technical capacity to carry out the program and to implement and manage the project.

Application requirements are described in the current Fiscal Year edition of the FTA Section 5311 Operating Assistance Grant package. The Application packet is reviewed and updated on an annual basis to reflect any changes in FTA or Division policy or requirements.

#### H. INTERCITY BUS TRANSPORTATION

The state is required to spend 15 percent of the Section 5311 apportionment to carry out a program for the development and support of intercity bus transportation. This percentage set-a-side is effective unless the Governor certifies that the intercity bus service needs of West Virginia are being adequately met.

Annually, the Division posts a notice on its website soliciting intercity bus projects. The Division sends copies of the notice to Greyhound, American Bus Association (ABA), and United Motorcoach Association (UMA).

During the development of local public transit-human services transportation plans, West Virginia gathers input from public and private operators. During this process, dozens of meetings are conducted around the state, which are attended by numerous groups. Additional opportunities for public and private provider input are afforded annually through the Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) and Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP) processes. The Division is in frequent contact with Greyhound concerning intercity bus projects.

Periodically, the Division surveys the contiguous states of Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia, Maryland, and Kentucky regarding possible multi-state intercity bus projects. Also, during subrecipient site visits, the Division addresses possible intercity bus connections. Several of the state's Section 5311 subrecipients provide meaningful connections to the state's intercity bus network. However, it is the state's policy to not classify the service as intercity bus.

#### I. STATE RURAL TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

- **Program Management.** The State's Rural Transportation Assistance Program (RTAP) is administered by the West Virginia Division of Public Transit. RTAP provides funding assistance for training, technical assistance, transit research and related support services. These funds are available primarily to assist operators that are involved in the provision and coordination of rural transportation services. In some cases they may also benefit properties in small urbanized areas.
- **Goals and Objectives.** The goal of the Division's RTAP is to promote improvement of public transportation services and mobility for persons living in rural areas.
- Local Match Requirements. All RTAP activities will be funded at the 100 percent federal funding level. In some cases, training scholarships will provide reimbursement for all expenses associated with attendance at seminars or workshops. Should the scholarship not cover the full cost for training, the recipient will be required to make up the difference with local funds.
- Methods of Involving Operators in Program Development and Implementation. The Division's RTAP utilizes the following means of involving rural operators in the development and implementation of the annual RTAP program of projects:
  - Input by Forum. During statewide meetings or workshops held throughout the year, such as the Managers' Workshop or the West Virginia Public Transit Association's Annual Meeting, a round table discussion is conducted among operators to determine their training and technical assistance needs and solicit input on development of the Division's RTAP program.
  - *On-Site Visits.* The Division conducts reviews of the rural transit providers to evaluate and monitor performance. From these visits, subrecipients needing or requesting assistance or training are identified and steps are generally taken by the Division to provide or obtain the services.
  - Division Staff. The entire staff of the Division of Public Transit aid in determining individual and statewide technical assistance needs which can be addressed through the RTAP program.
- **Project Selection Criteria**. The Division's Section 5311 Grant Manager determines, with input from the Director and staff members, as to what projects will be funded with RTAP funds.
  - *Eligible Recipients:* 
    - ♦ Section 5310 and 5311 subrecipients
    - ♦ Social/human/transit service coordinator
    - ♦ West Virginia Public Transit Association
  - Eligible Projects:
    - ◆ Training Either sponsored by the Division of Public Transit or by another association or organization

- ◆ Technical Assistance On-site to any eligible recipient or transit studies
   ◆ Support Services
   ◆ Research

## J. ANNUAL PROGRAM OF PROJECTS DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL PROCESS

Below is the Section 5311 annual application process. This process has a two-fold purpose of announcing proposed projects for which federal financial aid is sought and determining if the projects are consistent with state, regional, and local development programs.

- The Division makes application packets available to current recipients.
- ◆ The applicants submit letters of intent to apply to the Division and copies are mailed to the local planning and development council.
- ♦ Applicants publish a public notice providing comment period, complete their application and hold a public meeting, if necessary.
- Applicants submit completed applications for funding to the Division for its review.
- ◆ The Division reviews all applications submitted, then prepares a proposed program of projects. Priorities developed in the State Management Plan will be used to select projects for inclusion in the STIP.
- ◆ The Division submits the completed program of projects to the State Clearinghouse for Intergovernmental Review.
- ◆ The Division submits the completed program of projects to FTA for review and approval.
- ♦ The Division executes project grant agreement between the State of West Virginia and FTA.
- ♦ The Division executes operating subsidy contracts and capital lease agreements with Section 5311 applicants approved as a part of the program of projects.
- ♦ New Section 5311 project year begins July 1.

#### YEARLY TIMETABLE OF SECTION 5311 PROGRAM

December Application packets are made available.

(This includes capital assistance when

funding is available.)

February Deadline for submission of completed

applications to the Division of Public Transit. All applications are reviewed for inclusion in the Program of Projects.

March-April Program of Projects is prepared for

submission to the FTA.

January The Division of Public Transit posts

Public Notice providing early

notification to private providers that a new

grant cycle will begin in summer.

April Proposed Program of Projects is submitted

to FTA for review and approval.

May - June Approved Program of Projects returned

from FTA. Division of Public Transit executes project grant agreements between

the State of West Virginia and FTA.

June 1 - June 30 Contracts for operating assistance are

executed with each applicant approved as a

part of the Program of Projects.

July 1 New project year begins.

July - December All previous year financial audits are to be

completed.

#### K. FUNDS TRANSFERS

The State transfers Surface Transportation Program (STP) into Section 5311 on the basis of need and availability.

#### L. COORDINATION

The Division encourages the coordination and distribution of publicly funded transportation services within the State, including, but not limited to, transportation services for senior citizens, for participants in headstart programs, for persons with disabilities and for private non-profit organizations.

On March 16, 2004, the Governor signed Executive Order No. 5-04, which created the West Virginia Transportation Coordinating Council. The membership includes representatives from the Bureau of Senior Services; Department of Education; Department of Health and Human Resources; the Fair Shake Network (a State advocacy program for the disabled); the public transportation community; consumers; the Division, and others. The Council studies issues pertaining to the effective and efficient use of transportation resources. The Division also provides RTAP resources to finance other coordination efforts. Additionally, Division staff participates in local, regional and statewide transportation activities that deal with coordinating transportation services.

Each year, Section 5311 applicants are asked to describe their coordination activities. In some areas of the state, there are few, if any, opportunities for coordination of services due to the lack of other providers. The Division requires Section 5311 subrecipients to participate in the development of locally developed coordinated public transit-human services transportation plans.

The Division encourages coordination to the maximum extent feasible.

#### M. PRIVATE SECTOR PARTICIPATION

Each January, on behalf of the Section 5311 recipients, the Division posts an *Early Planning* notification on its webite. This notice provides private transportation operators or possible new business entrants an opportunity to provide input concerning the development of local transportation plans and programs. Comments are accepted for at least thirty days from the date of publication.

The Division requires Section 5311 subrecipients to participate in the development of locally developed coordinated public transit-human services transportation plans. Although subrecipients are expected to participate in the local planning process, projects are not required to be derived from the approved plan.

The Division of Public Transit and its subrecipients practice good faith efforts to promote the participation of the private sector in the planning and provision of mass transit services both as an independent private activity and, whenever feasible, through competitive contractual arrangements.

#### N. STATE ADMINISTRATION AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

The Division utilizes the maximum allowable funding for State Administrative support. Administrative tasks include:

- ◆ Project Selection (Application) Process
- ♦ Financial Management
- ♦ Statewide Transit Marketing and Transit Education Programs
- ♦ Technical and Management Assistance
  - Workshops/Seminars
  - Procurement
  - Financial
  - Grant Compliance
  - Project Monitoring
  - Specialized Technical Assistance
  - Safety
- ♦ Program Support
- ♦ Public Information Program
- ♦ Reporting Requirements

Needs determine the percentage of funds required for each task. Remaining state administration funds are used to offer training sessions for managers, drivers and other transit personnel and consultant contracts for system-specific technical assistance.

The Division reserves the right to waive or change any of the above tasks that would best serve the interests of the state and/or the program.

#### O. STATE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

**General Procedures:** By West Virginia State Code, the Division has been assigned the responsibility for the FTA Section 5311 Program. Within the Division, the Section 5311 Grant Coordinator is responsible for the day-to-day administration of the grant program. West Virginia's Section 5311 Program is managed in accordance with **FTA Circular 9040.1G** 

**Procurement:** The Division procures vehicles and all other major capital items on behalf of its Section 5311 subrecipients. Under the Section 5311 Program, all equipment is purchased through the State of West Virginia's Purchasing Division and in accordance with the West Virginia Code and federal requirements. The Division ensures that all relevant federal clauses are included in the bid proposals. Statewide contracts are utilized for vehicles and communication equipment whenever possible.

Other major capital items may generally include communications equipment, shop equipment, facility construction, computer hardware, and spare parts. The Division will prepare detailed specifications that best reflect the system's procurement needs. The transit manager will be responsible for reviewing the specifications and submitting any comments or revisions to the Division. The systems are permitted to perform their own procurement, with oversight from the Division of Public Transit, on capital items under \$5,000.

The Division is responsible for ensuring compliance with Pre-Award and Post-Delivery Review Regulations and Buy America. The Division also employs an on line inspector when revenue vehicles are being manufactured.

**Financial Management:** The Division expends and accounts for grant funds in accordance with West Virginia State Law which requires detailed records sufficient to permit tracking of funds to a level adequate to establishing propriety of expenditures and to permit preparation of reports. The Division utilizes wvOASIS, the statewide enterprise resource planning system. The Division's Comptroller is responsible for managing the agency's finances. All payments from FTA are requested utilizing the Electronic Clearing House Operation (ECHO-Web). The Division follows the requirements established in FTA's ECHO-Web User's Manual. Also, financial records with supporting documentation and any other records are retained by the Division for a period of at least three (3) years from the date of submission of the final financial status report.

The Division submits to FTA an annual Milestone Status Report and Federal Financial Report for each active grant. These reports cover the 12-month period ending September 30 and will be sent, through TrAMS, to the FTA within 30 days after the end of the reporting period.

All payments from FTA are requested utilizing the Electronic Clearing House Operation (ECHO) System. The Division follows the requirements established in FTA's ECHO System Operations Manual. Also, financial records with supporting documentation and any other records are retained by the Division for a period of at least three (3) years from the date of submission of the final financial status report.

**Property Management:** The Automated Vehicle Inventory System (AVIS) establishes a permanent property record for each piece of equipment purchased under an FTA grant. This system assists the Division in complying with FTA property management standards and provided equipment data for the WV Statewide Transit Asset Management (TAM) Plan.

Property records include information such as a description of the property, an equipment identification number, acquisition date, acquisition cost, FTA grant number and federal share of acquisition costs. Many other data fields are also included in the program to aid in the day-to-day management of property.

The system also provides the Division with a management tool to assist in the identification of equipment by either a specific federal grant or by an individual local agency. A series of reports can be generated based on grant requirements or other program management needs.

**Annual Certification**: The individual transit operator shall conduct an annual inventory of its property and the results shall be verified and reconciled with the Division's property records. Any differences found by the inspection shall be investigated to determine the cause. Also in connection with the annual inventory, the Division shall determine the current utilization and continued need for the property.

When the subrecipient is required to sell the property, proper sales procedures shall be used that provide for competition to the extent practicable and result in the highest possible return.

**Vehicle Use**: Project equipment shall be used for the provision of public transportation service to the general public. Equipment operated by social service agencies providing service to the general public are marked as open and marketed to the general public and the name of the transportation program must be general in nature and not reflective of a specific client group.

The subrecipients, in accordance with the established routes and services which were identified in their grant applications, shall operate the equipment.

The incidental use of Section 5311 funded vehicles for non-passenger transportation on an occasional or regular basis must not result in a reduction of service quality or availability of public service and must bear the cost of providing the service. A system may coordinate and assist in providing meal delivery for homebound persons on a regular basis if the meal delivery services bear the cost of the service and do not conflict with the provision of transit services or result in a reduction of service to transit passengers.

The provision of charter service is only allowed under the FTA exceptions. The use of vehicles for exclusive school bus service is prohibited.

All agencies are required to carry insurance in an amount sufficient to adequately cover the replacement value of the equipment. The Division is listed as co-insured on all policies to protect the federal interest.

**Vehicle Disposition:** The useful life of a vehicle is based upon how well a vehicle is maintained. Minimum normal service (useful) life for vehicles is stated below:

- Large, heavy duty transit buses (approximately 35' 40', and articulated buses): 12 years service or 500,000 miles
- Medium-size, heavy-duty transit buses (approximately 30'): 10 years service or 350,000 miles
- Medium-size, medium duty transit buses (approximately 30'): 7 years or 200,000 miles
- Medium-size, light-duty transit buses (approximately 25 35'): 5 years or 150,000
- Other light-duty buses such as small buses and regular and specialized vans: 4 years or 100,000
- Shop or support vehicles: 100,000 miles or 4 years

The Division considers the value of transit vehicles prior to the end of a normal service life to be based on a straight-line depreciation. Also, the vehicle service life standards refer to time in normal service, not time spent stockpiled or unavailable for regular transit duty.

Buses should be at the end of a minimum normal service life when considered for replacement. For purposes of Section 5311 bus replacements, the age of the bus to be replaced is its years of service at the time the new bus is introduced into service. Agencies may apply for replacement buses prior to the end of its useful life provided that the end of the useful life will be reached prior to placing the new vehicle in service.

The Division encourages that vehicles/equipment reaching the end of their normal useful life be retained in transit service if they are still functional. If the system wishes to replace a vehicle, the system is encouraged to offer it for transfer to any other public transit system wanting to continue to use it as a revenue or maintenance vehicle.

The system must first obtain permission from the Division before disposing of the equipment. When subrecipients sell the equipment, competitive sales procedures shall be followed to ensure the highest possible return. There are several methods that can be used to dispose of capital items once the useful life has been reached. These include sealed bids, Ebay, local auto auction and public auction.

For bus sales of less than \$5,000, proceeds (less actual expenses) are submitted to the Division and deposited in a "Capital Replacement Account" for use as match on future capital purchases. If \$5,000 or more, funds will be used for a like-kind exchange. Should

an agency wreck a vehicle, the insurance proceeds are used to fix the vehicle or, if totaled prior to reaching its useful life, to purchase a new vehicle.

**Construction and Renovation of Facilities**: All construction and renovation projects will be conducted in accordance with FTA and state purchasing requirements. This includes a facility needs assessment; environmental impact statement; land acquisition; request and review of bids; and, contract award and construction oversight.

**Accounting Systems**: The Division uses the accounting system, wvOASIS, as prescribed by the State of West Virginia. Expenditures and revenues are categorized by grant, object code and activity. This detail of transactions permits the Division to accurately account for and traces grant revenues and expenditures to the required level and assists in the preparation of reports.

**Audit**: The Division is audited as part of the State of West Virginia's annual audit, which is performed by an independent CPA firm. The audit is performed pursuant to the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200. The Division resolves audit findings as they occur and notifies FTA of any problems.

**Closeout**: All grants are closed out with FTA immediately after all work activities for the program of projects are completed. A final financial status report, final budget and a revised program of projects are submitted to FTA.

**Subrecipient Audits and Project Monitoring**: Operating contracts are executed for a one year period, based on the state's fiscal year of July 1 through June 30, except in the case of repeat recipients who receive a "no-opinion" on the annual audit for the previous year.

Recipient organizations receive funding on a monthly reimbursement basis. Reimbursements are made for actual expenditures and are limited to those expenses described in Appendix II of the Section 5311 Operating Assistance Grant Application.

Each recipient under the program submits Monthly Project Expenditure Reports detailing by line item the expenses incurred during the given month and the revenues collected through the farebox. In addition to the financial reporting information, recipients are required to report monthly operating statistics, which include passengers, miles, revenue per mile, cost per mile, and cost per passenger.

To aid recipients, the Division has developed a Section 5311 Financial Package, which consists of a series of computer worksheets for completing the Monthly Project Expenditure Report and produces 3, 6, 9 and 12-month cumulative reports. Upon entering the yearly budget totals, the program compares budget to actual. The package also graphs total passengers by month for the project year.

Transit systems are required to have an annual audit which shall be competitively procured and conducted in accordance with, at a minimum, generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) #34. If the subrecipient

expends more than \$750,000 in federal funds from all sources during the contract period, then it shall arrange for a single audit to be performed in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200.

Subrecipients are responsible for submitting one original copy of the audit report to the Division within 30 calendar days of completion by the independent auditor and, if a single audit, to the National Clearinghouse.

With regard to the audit report, the subrecipient should communicate to the auditors at the "entrance conference" any reporting provisions desired, as well as request an "exit conference". The request for an "exit conference" is necessary in order to be advised regarding all potential findings and recommendations presented in the draft audit report, which provides an opportunity to resolve the findings before the final audit report is issued.

The subrecipient is responsible for taking appropriate action on all audit findings. As part of this responsibility, the subrecipient must also prepare a corrective action plan for current year audit findings. The summary schedule of prior audit findings and the corrective action plan must include the reference numbers the auditor assigns to audit findings under 2 CFR part §200.516, Audit findings, paragraph (c). Since the summary schedule may include audit findings from multiple years, it must include the fiscal year in which the finding initially occurred. The corrective action plan and summary schedule of prior audit findings must include findings relating to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS).

All subrecipients are bound by contract and are accountable to the Division of Public Transit for all financial aspects of the project. Should the annual audit show that overpayments were made or there were ineligible expenses reported, the subrecipients, under the terms of the contract, are responsible for refunding to the Division any such costs. Upon receipt of the annual audit, the Division's comptroller reviews it, internal control and compliance findings are resolved and the federal share of any questioned costs are recovered and credited back to FTA.

**State Standards**: The Division does not set standards for productivity, cost-effectiveness or service. In an effort to promote operational efficiency and effectiveness, the Division emphasizes six performance measures: operating cost per vehicle hour, operating cost per mile, operating cost per passenger trip, farebox recovery ratio, passenger trips per mile, and passenger trips per hour. Systems are encouraged to achieve a 12-percent farebox recovery rate.

**State Reporting Requirements**: The Division requires Section 5311 subrecipients to submit a monthly Project Expenditure and Operating Statistics Report. In addition, 3-, 6-, 9- and 12-month cumulative reports are due to the Division. Other state reporting requirements include: Semi-annual DBE Activities Report; audit reports; copies of <u>all</u> vehicle accident/incident reports and all passenger accident/incident reports; annual drug and alcohol MIS Reports; Charter Service Reporting Form (only if a system provides charter service); Proof of Insurance; Annual Certification of Use of Project Equipment and/or Facilities Certification; Facility Maintenance Report (from those systems with FTA-funded facilities); and annual cost allocation plan, if required.

**Project Management**: The Division reserves the right to waive or change any requirements or policies that would best serve the interests of the state and/or the program.

**Program Guide:** To provide continuity in the program and as a ready reference, the Division has developed a Section 5311 Program Guide. Included in the notebook is information on the many federal requirements and state policies of the Section 5311 Program, an agency's responsibilities under the Section 5311 Program, maintenance requirements, disposition of vehicles and reporting forms. It is updated periodically to reflect any changes or additions.

**Project Monitoring**: During each state fiscal year, the Division performs on-site reviews of approximately half of all recipients of Section 5311 funds. These reviews consist of inspection of various records such as maintenance, personnel, marketing, procurement and financial. When possible, Division staff also rides routes and talks with passengers and drivers about the system and its services.

These reviews reveal the subrecipient's ability to properly manage federal grant funds as well as demonstrate the recipient's level of understanding of grant guidelines and requirements. These reviews also demonstrate areas in which the Division needs to provide additional technical assistance to the subrecipients.

#### P. MAINTENANCE

Vehicle maintenance is a key aspect to a successful system. The Division requires each subrecipient to develop a written maintenance plan for vehicles and facilities. Subrecipients must establish a preventative maintenance program that at least meets the manufacturers' minimum requirements. Suggestions on establishing a preventative maintenance program are in the Safety and Security Planning Information Directed to Effective Response (SPIDER). Records must be maintained showing routine maintenance along with all major repairs which may occur.

The Division reviews and approves all maintenance plans and reviews maintenance records during site visits.

The Division requires subrecipients to conduct pre-trip inspections before placing a vehicle in service. The Division has purchased an electronic pre- and post-trip inspection program. The Division requires subrecipients to cycle lifts during pre-trip inspections.

#### Q. CIVIL RIGHTS

**Title VI**: FTA Circular 4702.1B requires the state to develop a Title VI plan, which is updated every three years, detailing how the Division and its Section 5311 subrecipients will comply with Title VI. The Division requires subrecipients to submit Title VI plans every three years.

The State and its Section 5311 subrecipients must file a signed nondiscrimination assurance annually. The State submits its assurances to FTA and retains those it has received from its Section 5311 subrecipients.

**Limited English Proficiency (LEP)**. Every three years, Section 5311 subrecipients conduct an LEP assessment to determine the need for non-English services. The assessment is based on four factors: the number and proportion of LEP persons served or encountered in the eligible service populations; the frequency with which LEP individuals come into contact with the service; the nature and importance of the service; and the resources available and cost. Subrecipients submit a Language Assistance Plan as part of the Title VI plan submittal.

**EEO**: The West Virginia Department of Transportation, Equal Employment Opportunity Office has submitted an EEO program on behalf of the West Virginia Department of Transportation to the Federal Highway Administration. For subrecipients meeting or exceeding FTA threshold (receipt of \$1 million or more FTA funds in a year **and** 50 or more employees), their programs are submitted to the Division.

**DBE**: The West Virginia Equal Employment Opportunity Office develops and submits the DBE Program on behalf of the entire WV Department of Transportation. The Division submits its annual DBE goal directly to FTA for FTA funds. All subrecipients must submit semiannual DBE reports to the Division for reporting to FTA and must create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for FTA-assisted contracts. The state reports DBE participation on a semi-annual basis to FTA.

The above programs are inspected during the Division's periodic on-site reviews. With each application, subrecipients file certifications regarding Affirmative Action, Equal Employment Opportunity, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise and Nondiscrimination. The Section 5311 application also requires each subrecipient to report any current or pending civil rights complaints.

#### R. SECTION 504 AND ADA REPORTING

**SECTION 504**: Under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance cannot discriminate on the basis of a handicap. 49 CFR Part 27 contains the rules for implementing Section 504.

**ADA**: The Division developed ADA complaint procedures for the subrecipients to implement. Any complaints received by the Division concerning ADA and Section 504 service violations are promptly investigated. The Division works with the individual parties involved to find a resolution to the dispute. Failure to comply with ADA not only makes the transit system ineligible for federal funds but could also subject the system to private lawsuits.

Recipients are required to cycle wheelchair lifts before a vehicle is place in service to ensure that they are kept in good working order. All drivers must be certified in CTAA-PASS (Passenger Service and Safety) Certification Training Course. The Division has established a network of trained and certified PASS instructors in the state. Presently, the Division fully funds this training program designed to teach safety and sensitivity techniques to drivers transporting elderly and disabled passengers.

In the application, systems must complete and file four certifications pertaining to Section 504/ADA. These are: Nondiscrimination Assurance; Assurance Concerning Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Federally Assisted Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance; Certification of Special Efforts; and, Certification of Equivalent Service. Certifications are valid for only one year and are kept on file at the Division's Office.

Subrecipients are required to comply with ADA service provisions. The Division reviews for compliance with all ADA requirements during site visits.

#### S. NTD REPORTING

The Division reports rural data annually to the National Transit Database. The Division compiles the data from the Section 5311's annual reports.

#### T. CHARTER RULE

FTA prohibits grantees from using federally funded equipment or facilities if a registered private charter operator expresses interest in providing the service. Grantees are allowed to operate community-based charter services excepted under the regulations. Notably, the regulations exempt Section 5311 grantees who are allowed to provide charter service for "program purposes." Subrecipients performing charter service must comply with the FTA charter regulations.

#### **Division Responsibilities**

The Division of Public Transit is responsible for monitoring compliance among its subrecipients. The Division addresses compliance with the charter regulation through monthly reporting and biennial site visits. The Division requires its subrecipients to attach a charter reporting form to their Monthly Project Expenditures Report as well as indicate the number of charters conducted during the month. The Division reports to FTA quarterly on subrecipient charter activity.

The Division will investigate any complaints or appeals. The penalty for violations can be ineligibility for further federal funding. It is critical that all transit systems review their practices and make sure they comply. All Section 5311 subrecipients file a Certification of Compliance with the Division of Public Transit as part of their annual grant application.

#### U. OTHER PROVISIONS

**Special Labor Protection Warranty**: For West Virginia's Section 5311 subrecipients, the Special Labor Protection Warranty becomes part of all funding assistance contracts with the Division of Public Transit. As a part of their annual application for Section 5311 funding, each applicant must make assurance to the Division that all terms and conditions of the warranty will be met. The Division, as required by the Department of Labor, keeps these assurances on file. Each applicant must also provide the Division with a detailed listing of recipients, other eligible transportation providers and labor organizations in their area. Also, if a subrecipient is represented by a labor organization, the labor organization may become a part of the warranty by completing the labor organization letter.

Additionally, the Division has submitted, on behalf of all its subrecipients, the documentation required by Section A of the warranty. This documentation is filed directly with the U.S. Department of Labor.

**Environmental Protection**: All potential capital projects will be screened to determine which clearly meet the FHWA/FTA criteria for categorical exclusions or which may require additional documentation. The latter will be coordinated with the FTA Regional Office early in project development so that any necessary environmental analysis and review will not delay implementation. The Division will insure that all transportation plans, programs, projects and purchases conform to all applicable environmental guidelines.

**Buy America Provisions**: The Division includes a Buy America Certification form in its bid packages - for both rolling stock and non-rolling stock – for all purchases exceeding the Federal small purchase threshold. When applicable, Section 5311 subrecipients must comply with Buy America regulations and state so on their purchase orders.

**Pre-award and Post-delivery Audits**: The Division's procedures for complying with pre-award and post-delivery audit requirements follow.

After selection of a vendor, but prior to signing a contract, the vendor furnishes to the Division documentation proving that at least 65 percent (for procurements awarded in FY2019) of the equipment components are domestic and that the equipment's final assembly will be in the United States. For procurements awarded in FY2020 and beyond, the domestic content should be 70 percent. The Division reviews the documentation verifying that the provisions are met.

The Division also ensures that the proposed equipment meets the specifications and that the manufacturer is responsible with the capability to produce equipment that meets the specifications. A self-certification is received from the manufacturer stating that equipment built by them will meet the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards.

During manufacture and after delivery but before acceptance the vendor furnishes to the Division documentation proving that at least 60 percent of the completed equipment components were domestic, that the equipment's final assembly was in the United States and that the vehicle did meet the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards.

The Division reviews this documentation to ensure compliance. After delivery, the Division performs a visual inspection and a road test verifying that the equipment was constructed and operates in accordance with the specifications.

School Bus Restrictions: FTA grantees are prohibited from providing exclusive school bus service unless the service qualifies and is approved by the FTA under an allowable exemption. Federally funded equipment or facilities cannot be used to provide exclusive school bus service. School tripper service that operates and looks like all other regular service is allowed. School tripper service is regularly scheduled mass transportation service that is open to the public and is designed or modified to accommodate the needs of school students and personnel. Buses used in tripper service must be clearly marked as open to the public, not carry designations such as "school bus" or "school special," and stop at regular bus stops. The Division ensures compliance with school bus restrictions during biennial site visits.

**Drug and Alcohol Testing**: Section 5311 subrecipients are required to comply with the FTA Drug and Alcohol Regulations (49 CFR Part 655). The Division contracts with a consultant to periodically review the systems' written drug and alcohol policies and conduct on-site monitoring reviews. The Division has sponsored training classes and granted RTAP scholarships for subrecipients to attend drug and alcohol education courses that will assist them in understanding and complying with the regulations.

**Drug-Free Workplace Requirements**: Pursuant to the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Division of Public Transit certifies to FTA annually that a drug-free workplace exists. The Division posts the state's Drug-Free Workplace Act policy in the workplace and informs staff of the dangers of drug abuse and available counseling and other services.